
305 S Chestnut Avenue 
Architectural Style: Gothic: “Collegiate Gothic” 
The Purdy 

 

Built in 1919, & designed by Childs & Smith, 

Chicago, the Purdy (Wisconsin’s 1st junior high) 

was named after a local soldier who died in 

World War 1.  Originally it was the rectilinear 

part with buttressed corners facing W. 3rd St.  

The addition on Chestnut & 4th was added in 

1926-27 by Parkinson & Dockendorff, La 

Crosse, increasing its size 3 fold. The auditorium 

along 4th has been demolished. The facades have 

soldiered brick courses every 5th row.  Double 

hung windows, with fixed opaque sash transoms, have soldiered brick lintels & narrow concrete 

sills; 1 section along Chestnut has transparent transoms. Projecting tower bays, edged with an-

gled stepped buttresses & outlined with decorative concrete, rise above the rest of the building 

& house entries.  The 3rd St. entry, with fluted outlined, is recessed. 
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At the close of the world war, the board decided to proceed with the new junior high school building 

project, and the lowest bid came from Krasin Brothers, who proposed to do the construction for $51,458. 

The heating, plumbing and lighting bid was approved at $13,859. When construction was completed one 

year and nine months later, the total labor and construction cost came in at only $65,311, well below an 

estimate of $100,000 estimate. 

 

Equipment was also needed for the new school, and the board was authorized at the annual meeting on 

July 7, 1919 to borrow an additional $24,000. Voters also chose to change the name to Franklin as origi-

nally proposed. A large number of people in the community resented the name change, and suggested 

the building be named the Willard D. Purdy school in honor of the World War I hero from Marshfield. 

 

The city council took action to have the school board change the name after petitions were presented 

urging reconsideration. A meeting of the school district was scheduled for September 22, 1919. A unani-

mous motion was passed to name the school after Sergeant Purdy who died when he threw himself on a 

live hand grenade and saved others in his company from injury or death. 

  

The building was occupied in the fall of 1920, with formal dedication taking place on the evening of 

November 11, 1920. Total enrollment in the seventh, eighth and ninth grades was 290 pupils, and the 

vocational school enrollment of 100. Since the first day it was occupied it was not large enough for all 

the students. School officials had estimated the building could accommodate 240 students at best. 

  

A bronze plaque was placed in the entry of the building, the cost of which was donated by private citi-

zens. The plaque read: "This building is dedicated to the memory of Sergeant Willard D. Purdy, Com-

pany A, 127th Infantry. On July 4, 1918, in Alsace Lorraine, France, Sergeant Purdy died to save the 

lives of seven other Wisconsin soldiers. 'Greater love hath no man than this that a man lay down his life 

for his friends,' serves as an inspiration to the many who attend this school and the visitor who enters the 

building." 

 
Excerpted from the Marshfield History Project, Volume 1, “The Marshfield Story, 1872-1997:Piecing To-

gether Our Past”, Page 137. 

 

 

Also see related story, “Purdy Retirement Community”:                                                                     

http://hstrial-marshfieldare.homestead.com/Purdy_Retirement_Community.pdf 

 

For additional information on this building from the Wisconsin Historical Society:                              

https://www.wisconsinhistory.org/Records/Property/HI55481   and 

https://www.wisconsinhistory.org/Records/NationalRegister/NR1251 
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